
   Economic Development Authority Agenda 

1 
 Upon request, accommodations will be provided for individuals with disabilities wishing to participate 

 

AGENDA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2024, 12:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
4. REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
   
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. March 13, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 B. Expenditures 
 C. Financial Report 
 D. Project Updates 
  
6. ACTION AGENDA 
 A. Set the public hearing for May 8, 2024, for the sale of 513 West Elm Avenue. 
 B. Authorize signatures for the Barney’s Drive Inn II LLC Loan Agreement 
 C. Consider a Loan modification request from Harty Manufacturing (to increase the loan amount) 
 D. Review EDA Board Application- Zinkle 
 
7. UPDATES 
   
   
   
  
8. NEXT MEETING DATE 
  The next Economic Development Authority meeting is to be held on Wednesday, May 8, 2024, at 

12:00 p.m. in the Waseca City Hall Council Chambers. 
   
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 



Economic Development Authority Meeting March 13, 2024 

1 

MINUTES 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 13, 2024, 12:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

1. The Economic Development Authority Meeting was called to order by President Kruse at 12:00 p.m.

Commission Members Present: President Lucas Kruse James Ebertowski (arr 12:02 p.m.) 
Ann Fitch (arr 12:01 p.m.)  John Fossom 
Randy Zimmerman 

Commission Member Absent: Vacant Vacant 

Staff Present: Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager 
Tina Wilson, Economic Development Manager 
Julia Hall, City Clerk 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

2. Motion to approve agenda made by Zimmerman, seconded by Fossum. Motion carried 3-0.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

3. None

REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

4. None

CONSENT AGENDA 

5. Motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Fitch and seconded by Fossom. Motion carried 5-0.

ACTION AGENDA 
6. 

A. Motion was made by Fitch to accept the resignation of Member Tackett, seconded by Kruse.
Motion carried 5-0.

B. Motion was made by Zimmerman to authorize the signatures on the Revolving Loan Fund
Agreement for Harty Manufacturing. Seconded by Fitch. Motioned carried 5-0.

C. Motion made by Kruse to post recruiting for two open spots in the Economic Development
Authority. Seconded by Ebertowski. Motion carried 5-0.

D. Barneys Drive-In has sold to a local couple, Joe and Audra Veroeven. They are excited to keep the
business going, having more local items and bringing back some old favorites. Most items will be
made from scratch. They are looking at possible ideas for the attached apartment.  They are looking
to open for the season on April 1st.
Motion was made by Zimmerman to approve the Revolving Loan Fun Application from Barney’s
Drive-In. Seconded by Fitch. Motion carried 5-0.

5A



Economic Development Authority Meeting March 13, 2024 

2 

E. Zimmerman asked if there was a way that Waseca could have a business academy similar to what
Owatonna has. Member Fitch confirmed that Owatonna works with their chamber to provide the
academy and it is something that Waseca could do. President Kruse suggested that the EDA could
possibly look into investing in such a program. Tina Wilson said that Greenseam is going to offer a
session on entrepreneurship on May 17th. Some areas to think of would be 1) What exists today, 2)
What is missing 3) What to do to bring it forward. More conversations will be brought up in the
future.

UPDATES 
7. A. City Manager Sonnenberg gave an update on Marketplace:

• Council will be asked to approve the purchase at the next Council Meeting

• There will be a public hearing on the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District on April 2nd.

• They are looking to start construction in June.

• Phase 1 will have 36 units.

• There will be renderings provided in the future.

• The process is moving forward.

NEXT MEETING DATE 
8. A. There will be a joint worksession with the City Council and Economic Development Authority on April 2,

2024, at 5:30 p.m. at the Waseca Public Safety Building in their Community Room.

B. The next Economic Development Authority meeting will be held Wednesday, April 10, 2024, at 12:00 p.m.
in the Waseca City Hall Council Chambers.

ADJOURNMENT 
9. It was moved by Fossom to adjourn the meeting at 12:33 p.m., seconded by Kruse. Motion carried 5-0.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Julia Hall 
City Clerk 



LIST OF EXPENDITURES

======================================================================

Econ Development 6,558.40

Total Gross Payroll 6,558.40         

*Less- Payroll Deductions (2,791.96)        

Net Payroll Cost 3,766.44$            

*These costs are included in Accounts Payable totals below

Accounts Payable

Expenditures dated:
March 08, 2024-April 04, 2024
Bank ACH Withdrawals……………………………………...…………… 2,635.75              

        GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,402.19$        

April 10, 2024

5B



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - EDA Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 3/8/2024 - 4/4/2024 Apr 04, 2024  09:21AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

Economic Development-General f

03/14/2024 20240181 Flaherty & Hood PA EDA Loan Documents 261-46700-3000 427.50

          Total 261467003000: 427.50

03/14/2024 32413 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 261-46700-3200 20.62 M

          Total 261467003200: 20.62

03/14/2024 20240206 U.S. Bank - CC Parking Garage fee-growing in the greenseam 261-46700-3300 13.00

03/14/2024 20240206 U.S. Bank - CC Registration fee for Pork Congress event 261-46700-3300 10.00

03/14/2024 20240206 U.S. Bank - CC Site Selectors Workshop Forum Kentucky 261-46700-3300 1,875.00

03/14/2024 20240206 U.S. Bank - CC Registration Fee for new user AURI Forum 261-46700-3300 100.00

03/14/2024 20240206 U.S. Bank - CC Parking Garage for Kentucky Forum 261-46700-3300 58.58

03/28/2024 20240348 Wilson, Tina Mileage and parking reimbursement 261-46700-3300 131.05

          Total 261467003300: 2,187.63

          Total Economic Development-General f: 2,635.75

          Grand Totals:  2,635.75

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



Page: 1Budget Worksheet - EDA Monthly Budget ReportCity of Waseca

Period 03/24 (03/31/2024) Apr 08, 2024 9:22AM

Account Number Account Title

2022-22
Prior year 2

Actual

2023-23
Prior year

Actual

2024-24
Current year

Budget

2024-24
Current year

Actual

2024-24
Current year

Budget Remaining

261-31010-0000 Property Taxes 93,566.75 93,431.42 115,244.00 .00 115,244.00

261-31013-0000 Market Value Credit .00 4.06 .00 .00 .00

261-31030-0000 Mobile Home Tax 62.71 .00 .00 .00 .00

261-36205-0000 Interest on Loans 9,507.19 6,742.98 4,666.00 853.73 3,812.27

261-36210-0000 Interest Earnings 7,587.48 5,662.76 6,000.00 .00 6,000.00

261-36216-0000 Investment Income (Loss) 26,292.71- 15,143.95 .00 .00 .00

261-36250-0000 Miscellaneous Revenue .00 600.00 .00 1,739.17 1,739.17-

261-46700-1010 Regular Employees 14,978.78 36,776.43 39,320.00 9,684.40 29,635.60

261-46700-1110 Severance Pay 4,225.85 .00 .00 .00 .00

261-46700-1200 FICA 917.93 2,258.73 2,438.00 590.04 1,847.96

261-46700-1210 PERA 973.40 2,758.34 2,949.00 726.31 2,222.69

261-46700-1220 Medicare 214.69 528.24 571.00 137.99 433.01

261-46700-1300 Insurance 1,677.36 4,710.99 6,048.00 1,631.63 4,416.37

261-46700-1310 VEBA/HSA Trust Funding 806.16 1,566.24 1,567.00 456.82 1,110.18

261-46700-1330 Life Insurance 53.27 136.56 138.00 39.83 98.17

261-46700-1340 Disability Insurance 35.24 146.66 146.00 35.81 110.19

261-46700-1510 Worker's Comp Expense 274.32 236.03 323.00 .00 323.00

261-46700-2170 General Supplies .00 26.98 200.00 26.89 173.11

261-46700-3000 Professional Services 22,523.50 4,010.25 5,000.00 427.50 4,572.50

261-46700-3001 Audit Fees .00 196.95 100.00 .00 100.00

261-46700-3100 Contractual Services 9,970.00 23,440.00 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00

261-46700-3200 Communications .00 276.95 300.00 41.24 258.76

261-46700-3300 Conferences and Schools 93.57 6,162.25 13,915.00 3,360.01 10,554.99

261-46700-3350 Car Allowance/Milage .00 495.58 .00 .00 .00

261-46700-3500 Printing and Publishing .00 .00 250.00 40.00 210.00

261-46700-4320 Uncollectible/ Write Off .00 2,302.80 .00 .00 .00

261-46700-4330 Dues and Subscriptions 16,203.67 15,945.00 12,100.00 11,865.00 235.00

64,515.5726,470.57-38,045.0019,610.1911,483.68Grand Totals:

Report Criteria:

Includes only accounts with balances

Includes grand totals

Account.Account number = "261"

5C



EDA Project Updates under consent agenda April 10, 2024 

Item# Notes 

1. Morgan Meat Market: Meat Producers expansion grant awarded in the amount of $250,000 

2. RFI Response submitted for the Clear Lake Press Building 

For Information only: 

• The Greenseam Business Creation and Attraction Committee will be hosting a “Grow in the
Greenseam” workshop in Waseca May 17.  Facilitators are from UMN College of Food and Ag Natural
Science, Neil Linscheid, and Jeff Stamp. Waseca panelist will be Tim Wetzel, Richard Berry & Matt
Little

• Attended the AURI open house in Waseca on 4/8 & the forum in Mankato on 4/9.

Website updates: 
This is a work in progress. With my vacation in January, I have not made much progress on this, but I will 
continue to work on it as time allows. www.scoutcities.com – Here is the page for your information: 
https://explore.scoutcities.com/cities/waseca-mn  

City County ED Collaboration: 
1) Grant application for the Courthouse Park improvements was filed April 1
2) I am working on the grant application with region 9 and MJ for the Workforce Development Center.
Recently met with Senator Klobuchar and Darrin Fleener, US EDA. We hope to file the application by the
end of the month.
3) County will be reactivating their Childcare Initiative.

5D

http://www.scoutcities.com/
https://explore.scoutcities.com/cities/waseca-mn


Title: Set Public Hearing Authorizing sale of EDA property 

Meeting Date: April 10, 2024 
Agenda Item 

Number:  

Action: 

 MOTION 

 REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

 RESOLUTION 

 ORDINANCE 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Purchase and Sales 

Agreement 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

BACKGROUND:  

The City of Waseca Economic Development Authority originally purchased 517 West Elm Avenue in 2003. In 

2010, the EDA purchased 513 West Elm Avenue. In 2015, the properties were combined into one parcel, now 

known as 513 West Elm Avenue.  

The EDA has advertised the property for sale by physically locating a sign on the property advertising the 

property for sale for $1. The property has challenges for development as any development must meet the 

Department of Natural Resources Shoreland Overlay District restrictions.  Though there have been many 

inquiries, none of the proposed projects would fit the DNR Shoreland Overlay District restrictions. Once the 

business discovered the development constrictions, they were no longer interested. Mona Montenegro of 

Lucia’s Kitchen and Catering has worked with city staff to ensure that her business and conceptual site plan 

would meet the development restrictions.  

BUDGET IMPACT:  

The EDA has a total purchase price of $117,687 recorded in their records. This sale will lead to a book 

adjustment for the EDA but no change to the physical cash on hand. By selling the property after 20 years of 

ownership, the EDA & City will start to earn property taxes on 513 West Elm Avenue instead of vacant land, 

exempt from taxation, bringing in no income to the city. 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff is recommending the EDA set a public hearing for Resolution 24-27 on May 8, 2024, at noon, Authorizing 

the sale of EDA property located at 513 West Elm Avenue 

Request for Economic Development Authority Action 

6A



1 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of 
_______________, 2024, by and between the Waseca Economic Development Authority, a body 
politic and corporate under the laws of the State of Minnesota, 508 South State Street, Waseca, 
Minnesota 56093 (the “EDA” or “Seller”), BUSINESS NAME, a limited liability company 
under the laws of the state of Minnesota,ADDRESS Waseca, MN 56093 (“Buyer”); 
(collectively the “Parties”). 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements of the Parties hereto, Seller and Buyer 
agree as follows: 

1. SALE OF REAL PROPERTY.  Upon and subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller, the
parcel of undeveloped real property located at 513 West Elm Avenue in the City of
Waseca, Waseca County, Minnesota, (respectively PID No. 174530180); containing
approximately 0.36 acres, as legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and depicted
on as Exhibit B attached hereto, which exhibits are incorporated herein by reference,
together with (i) all easements and rights benefiting or appurtenant to the Land and
improvements, including any right, title or interest in the bed of any street, road, highway
or alley adjoining the Land (collectively the “Property”).

2. PURCHASE PRICE AND MANNER OF PAYMENT.  The total purchase price
(“Purchase Price”) to be paid by Buyer to Seller for the Property is One Dollar, which
amount shall be paid at Closing. The Parties agree that the difference between the
Purchase Price and the fair market value of the Property represents financial assistance
from Seller to Buyer in support of Buyer’s Project to devote the Property to its Intended
Use, as that term is defined in Section 3 below. Seller is authorized to provide such
financial assistance to Buyer pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.105 and
469.101, subject to the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 116J.993 - .995, as
applicable. Seller having owned the Property and unsuccessfully marketed the Property
for sale for more than ten years, represents that the fair market value of the Property does
not exceed $25,000.00.

3. CLOSING AND POSSESSION.  The closing of the purchase and sale of the Property
contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur within ninety (90) days of
this Agreement, or on a date mutually acceptable to Seller and Buyer, (the “Closing
Date”). The Seller agrees to deliver possession of the Property not later than the Closing
Date provided that all the contingencies and other terms and conditions contained in this
Agreement have been complied with and satisfied. The Closing shall take place at
Waseca City Hall or the Title Company, as hereinafter defined, or at such other place as
may be agreed to mutually by the Parties.

a. Seller’s Closing Documents.  On the Closing Date, Seller shall execute and/or
deliver to Buyer the following (collectively, “Seller’s Closing Documents”):



2 

i. Quit Claim Deed.  Attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit C is
the required Quit Claim Deed containing the terms, covenants, and
conditions upon which the sale of the Property is based.  Pursuant to
Minnesota Statutes, section 469.105, the Quit Claim Deed shall contain
the following restrictions, covenants, and conditions:

1. The Property herein conveyed shall be devoted to the following
use: commercial food service / catering (the “Intended Use”).

2. The Property shall be devoted to such Intended Use in accordance
with the provisions of the Deed.

3. The Buyer shall (a) commence work on the improvements within
one year from the date the deeds are recorded with the Office of
the Waseca County Recorder, and (b) shall devote the Property to
its intended use by July 15, 2024.  If the Buyer fails to commence
work on time or fails to devote the Property to its intended use, or
fails to devote the Property to its intended use on time, title to the
Property shall revert to Seller, at Seller's election, and, in that
event, Buyer shall promptly offer a deed(s) to the Property legally
described herein to Seller, who will then refund to Buyer the
amount of the Purchase Price paid by Buyer to Seller, without
interest, less any taxes and other encumbrances affecting
marketability of title.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller may,
at its option, consider an extension of time for good cause shown
by Buyer.  In the event an extension is granted, such extension (a)
shall be to a date certain, (b) may be conditioned by Seller to
protect the public interest, and (c) during the period Buyer shall not
transfer title to the Property without the express written consent of
Seller.

After the Buyer has devoted the Property to its intended use in
accordance with approved plans and specifications for the
development of the Property submitted to the Seller, the Seller
shall provide to Buyer a certificate of compliance / completion in
recordable form within 30 days from the determination thereof by
Seller.

4. Incorporated herein by reference are all of the conditions of
Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.090 to 469.108, and all of said
conditions and the conditions stated herein relative to the use of the
Property are covenants running with the land.

5. The Buyer shall not transfer title to the Property within one (1)
year after the date of the Deeds without the express written consent
of the Seller.



3 

6. Any transfer of title to the Property made pursuant to the
provisions of paragraphs 3 and 5 hereof shall be made only to a
person or entity who demonstrates to the satisfaction of Seller that
such person or entity has the ability to perform in place of Buyer.

ii. Well Certificate.  If there are wells on the Property, a Well Certificate in
the form required by Minn. Stat. § 103I.235.

iii. Other Affidavits.  Any other affidavits or certificates that may be required
under Minn. Stat. § 116.48, Subd. 6, or Minn. Stat. § 115B.16 or other
applicable provisions of law.

iv. Other.  Such other documents as may reasonably be required to transfer
fee title to the Property to Buyer.

b. Buyer’s Closing Documents.     On the Closing Date, Buyer will execute and/or
deliver to Seller the following (collectively, “Buyer’s Closing Documents):

i. Purchase Price.     The Purchase Price in immediately available funds.

ii. Permanent Easement Agreement.  A permanent easement agreement in
favor of the City of Waseca for public utility and drainage purposes ten
feet in width over, under and across the entire perimeter of the Property, in
a form satisfactory to Seller in Seller’s sole discretion.

iii. Certificate of Real Estate Value.  A Certificate of Real Estate Value.

4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT.  The obligations of the Parties to perform under this
Purchase Agreement are contingent upon the timely occurrence or satisfaction of each of
the following conditions prior to the Closing Date:

a. Public Hearing.  Sale of the Property is contingent upon a determination by the
EDA as to the advisability of the sale; that the sale and conveyance are in the
public interest, the best interests of the city or district and its people, and that the
transaction furthers the EDA’s general plan of economic development and the
aims and purposes of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.090 to 469.108, after a
public hearing required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.105, which shall be
held prior to the Closing Date. The Parties understand and agree that the
sale/purchase of the Property is contingent upon approval by the Board of
Commissioners of the EDA prior to June 15, 2024.

b. Plans and Specifications.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.105,
subd. 7, the Buyer shall, prior to the transfer of title of the Property, submit to the
EDA written plans and specifications for the development of the Property; no
transfer shall be made unless and until such plans are approved in writing by the



4 

EDA. The detail of the plans and specifications shall be such as will enable the 
EDA to determine with reasonable certainty that the project on the Property is or 
will be in compliance with the law and will, if carried out, provide for the 
intended use  

c. One-year deadline.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.105, subd. 5,
the Property shall be devoted to its intended use or work on the improvements to
the Property to devote it to that use must be started within one year of the Closing
Date, based upon the plans and specifications for the development project
approved by the EDA.

d. Private Financing.  Prior to or on June 15, 2024, Buyer has closed on Buyer’s
financing and provided to Seller a document signed by the Buyer’s bank or other
financial institution demonstrating that Buyer has closed and obtained financing
to construct and complete the development project on the Property.

e. Form of Quit Claim Deeds.  Attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit
C is the form of the Quit Claim Deeds required containing the terms, covenants,
and conditions upon which the sale of the Property is based.

f. Title.  On the Closing Date, title to the Property shall be acceptable to Buyer
subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Section 8 regarding title
examination.

g. Transaction Approval.  Seller’s obligation to perform hereunder is contingent
upon Seller obtaining, before the Closing Date, approval of the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement by the Board of Commissioners of the EDA.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if such approval has
not been obtained by the Closing Date, this Agreement shall be null and void.
Execution of this Agreement by any person on behalf of the Seller prior to
obtaining the necessary approvals provided herein shall not confer any personal
authority nor create any personal liability on the signer for the obligations of
Seller under this Agreement.

The above conditions in this section are solely for the benefit of, and may at any time be 
waived by, the Party so benefitted.  If any approval as provided herein is not obtained, or 
any condition precedent not satisfied, by the Closing Date, this Agreement shall be null 
and void. 

5. PURCHASE, AS-IS.  The Property described in this Purchase Agreement is being sold
in an “as is” and with “all faults” condition, Buyer hereby acknowledges that Buyer has
had an opportunity to inspect the Property prior to the execution of this Agreement.
Buyer’s acceptance of title to the Property shall represent Buyer’s acknowledgment and
agreement that, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement: (i)  Seller has not made
any written or oral representation or warranty of any kind with respect to the Property
(including without limitation express or implied warranties of title, merchantability, or



5 

fitness for a particular purpose or use), (ii) Buyer has not relied on any written or oral 
representation or warranty made by Seller, its agents or employees with respect to the 
condition or value of the Property, (iii)  Buyer has had an adequate opportunity to inspect 
the condition of the Property, including without limitation, any environmental testing, 
and to inspect documents applicable thereto, and Buyer is relying solely on such 
inspection and testing, and (iv) the condition of the Property is fit for Buyer’s intended 
use.  Buyer agrees to accept all risk of Claims (including without limitation all Claims 
under any Environmental Law and all Claims arising at common law, in equity or under a 
federal, state or local statute, rule or regulation) whether past, present or future, existing 
or contingent, known or unknown, arising out of, resulting from or relating to the 
condition of the property, known or unknown, contemplated or uncontemplated, 
suspected or unsuspected, arising out of, resulting from, or relating to the condition of the 
Property, including without limitation, the presence of any Hazardous Substance on the 
Property, whether such Hazardous Substance is located on or under the Property, or has 
migrated or will migrate from or to the Property. 

a. For purposes of this Section, the following terms have the following meanings:

i. “Environmental Law” means the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 U.S.C.
§9601 et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.
§9601 et seq. the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. §1201 et
seq., the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §1321 et seq., the Clean Air Act, 42
U.S.C. §7401 et seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251
et seq., all as amended from time to time, and any other federal, state,
local or other governmental statute, regulation, rule, law or ordinance
dealing with the protection of human health, safety, natural resources or
the environment now existing and hereafter enacted; and

ii. “Hazardous Substance” means any pollutant, contaminant, hazardous
substance or waste, solid waste, petroleum product, distillate, or fraction,
radioactive material, chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive
toxicity, polychlorinated biphenyl or any other chemical, substance or
material listed or identified in or regulated by any Environmental Law.

iii. “Claim” or “Claims” means any and all liabilities, suits, claims,
counterclaims, causes of action, demands, penalties, debts, obligations,
promises, acts, fines, judgment, damages, consequential damages, losses,
costs, and expenses of every kind (including without limitation any
attorney’s fees, consultant’s fees, costs, remedial action costs, cleanup
costs and expenses which may be related to any claims).

6. WELLS AND INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS.  The Seller
certifies that the Seller does not know of any wells or individual sewage treatment
systems on or serving the Property described herein.



6 

7. PRORATIONS.     Seller and Buyer agree to the following prorations and allocation of
costs regarding the Property and this Agreement.

a. Deed Tax.  Buyer shall pay all state deed tax regarding the deeds to be delivered
by Seller under this Agreement.

b. Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments. Real estate taxes and any special
assessments payable in the year 2024 shall be prorated between Seller and Buyer
to the Closing Date.  The Buyer shall pay real estate taxes and any special
assessments payable therewith thereafter.

c. Recording Costs.  Buyer will pay the cost of recording the Deeds.  Seller shall
pay the cost of recording any documents necessary to perfect its own title.

d. Other Costs.  All other operating costs of the Property will be allocated between
Seller and Buyer as of the Closing Date, so that Seller pays that part of such other
operating costs accruing on or before the Closing Date, and Buyer pays that part
of such operating costs accruing after the Closing Date.

e. Attorneys’ Fees.  Each of the parties will pay its own attorneys’, accountants’
and consultants’ fees.

8. TITLE EXAMINATION.

a. The Delivery of the Title Commitment.  Buyer may obtain, at its option and
expense, a commitment for an owner’s policy of title insurance.  Buyer shall pay
all costs associated with obtaining title insurance including, but not limited to,
updating the abstract, if any, or obtaining a new registered property abstract of
title for the Property, title insurance premiums and title examination fees
(hereinafter the “Title Commitment”), issued by a Title Insurance Company
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota and approved by Buyer
(hereinafter the “Title Company”). The Title Commitment shall be based upon the
description of the Property provided herein and shall show fee title in the Seller,
subject only to those encumbrances waived in writing by Buyer, and shall provide
for extended coverage risks and include special endorsements for zoning,
contiguity and such other matters as Buyer may request.

b. The Making and Curing of Title Objections.  Buyer shall be allowed fifteen
(15) days after receipt of the Title Commitment in which to make objections to
the content of the commitment, said objections to be made in writing.  If there are
any objections to the title which are not remedied by the Closing Date, the Seller
shall have sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of said written objections in
which to remedy said objections.

c. The Consequences of Failing to Cure Title Objections. If said objections are
not remedied within sixty (60) days from the date of Seller's receipt of said



7 

objections, then Buyer shall have the following two alternatives: 

i. Buyer may accept title to said Property subject to said objections; or

ii. Buyer may declare this entire transaction to be null and void, in which
case, any earnest money shall immediately be returned to Buyer.

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION.  This written Agreement constitutes the
complete agreement between the Parties and supersedes any prior oral or written
agreements between the parties regarding the Property.  There are no verbal agreements
that change this Agreement and no waiver of any of its terms will be effective unless in
writing executed by the Parties.

10. BINDING EFFECT.  This Agreement binds and benefits the parties and their successors
and assigns.

11. CONTROLLING LAW.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that each has been given
the opportunity to independently review this Agreement with legal counsel, and/or has
the requisite experience and sophistication to understand, interpret, and agree to the
particular language of this Agreement.  The Parties have equal bargaining power, and
intend the plain meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.  In the event of an
ambiguity in or dispute regarding the interpretation of this Agreement, the ambiguity or
dispute shall not be resolved by application of any rule that provides for interpretation
against the drafter of the Agreement.  This Agreement has been made under the laws of
the State of Minnesota, and such laws will control its interpretation.

12. DATES AND TIME PERIODS.  Should the date for the giving of any notice, the
performance of any act, or the beginning or end of any period provided for herein fall on
a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, such date shall be extended to the next succeeding
business day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

13. NOTICES.  Any notice required or permitted to be given by any party upon the other is
given in accordance with this Agreement if it is directed to Seller by delivering it
personally to an officer of Seller; or if it is directed to Buyer, by delivering to a partner of
Buyer; or if mailed by United States registered or certified mail; return receipt requested,
postage prepaid; or if deposited cost paid with a nationally recognized, reputable
overnight courier, properly addressed as follows:

If to Buyer: BUSINESS NAME 
ADDRESS 
Waseca, MN 56093 

If to Seller: Tina Wilson, Economic Development Manager 
Waseca Economic Development Authority 
508 South State St 
Waseca, MN 56093 



8 

Notices shall be deemed effective on the earlier of the date of receipt or the date of 
deposit as aforesaid; provided, however, that if notice is given by deposit, that the time 
for response to any notice by the other party shall commence to run two (2) business days 
after any such deposit.  Any party may change its address for the service of notice by 
giving written notice of such change to the other party, in any manner above specified. 

14. REMEDIES.  If Buyer defaults under this Agreement, Seller shall have the right to
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Buyer.  If Buyer fails to cure such
default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such written notice, this Agreement will
terminate, and upon such termination Seller will retain any Earnest Money as liquidated
damages, time being of the essence of this Agreement.  The termination of this
Agreement and retention of the Earnest Money, if any, will be the sole remedy available
to Seller for such default by Buyer, and Buyer will not be liable for damages.  If Seller
defaults under this Agreement, Buyer may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30)
days’ written notice to Seller (Seller having cure rights during the 30-day period), and
upon such termination, the Earnest Money, if any, shall be refunded to Buyer and
thereafter, neither Party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder.

15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

a. Voluntary and Knowing Action.  The Parties, by executing this Agreement,
state that they have carefully read this Agreement and understand fully the
contents thereof; that in executing this Agreement they voluntarily accept all
terms described in this Agreement without duress, coercion, undue influence, or
otherwise, and that they intend to be legally bound thereby.

b. Authorized Signatories. The Parties each represent and warrant to the other that
(1) the persons signing this Agreement are authorized signatories for the entities
represented, and (2) no further approvals, actions or ratifications are needed for
the full enforceability of this Agreement; each party indemnifies and holds the
other harmless against any breach of the foregoing representation and warranty.

c. Data Practices.  The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to the
requirements of Minnesota’s Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes,
Section 13.01 et seq.

d. Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the
written consent of the other Party.

e. Headings and Captions.  Headings and captions contained in this Agreement are
for convenience only and are not intended to alter any of the provisions of this
Agreement and shall not be used for the interpretation of the validity of the
Agreement or any provision hereof.

f. Survival.  The respective covenants, agreements, indemnifications, warranties
and other terms of this Agreement will survive and be in full force and effect after



9 

the Closing, and shall not be deemed to have merged into any of the Closing 
Documents. 

g. Other Documents.  Each Party to this Agreement agrees, both at the Closing and
after the Closing, to execute such other documents as may be reasonably
requested by the other party in order to complete the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

h. Counterparts.  This Purchase Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, and which together shall constitute a single,
integrated contract.

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank. 



10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Buyer have caused this Agreement to be 
executed effective as of the day and year first set forth above. 

SELLER: 

WASECA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

By: _________________________________ 
INSERT, Its President 

By: _________________________________ 
INSERT, Its Executive Director 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WASECA ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2024, by INSERT, as President, and INSERT, as Executive Director, for the Waseca Economic 
Development Authority, a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State of Minnesota, 
Seller. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public 



11 

BUYER: 

BUSINESS NAME 

_____________________________________ 
Mona Montenegro, Owner 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WASECA ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2024, by Mona Montenegro, as Owner of BUSINESS NAME, a BUSINESS TYPE, Buyer. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public 

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 

FLAHERTY & HOOD, P.A. 
525 Park Street, Suite 470 
St. Paul, MN 55103 
(651) 225-8840



12 

EXHIBIT A 
TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Description of Property  

Lots Information including any Addition    



13 

EXHIBIT B 
TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Approximate Depiction of Property 



14 

EXHIBIT C 
TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(Top 3 inches reserved for recording data) 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

eCRV number: __________________ 

DEED TAX DUE: $______________ DATE: ______________, 2024 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the Waseca Economic Development Authority, a body 
politic and corporate under the laws of the State of Minnesota (“Grantor”), hereby conveys and 
quitclaims to BUSINESS NAME (“Grantee”), real property in Waseca County, Minnesota, 
legally described as: 

[Insert legal description of Property]  

together with all hereditaments and appurtenances belonging thereto. 

Subject to the following restrictions, covenants, and conditions: 

1. The real property herein conveyed shall be devoted to the following use: Commercial.

2. The real property shall be devoted to such intended use by the Grantee in accordance
with the provisions of this Deed.

3. The Grantee shall (a) commence work on the improvements within one year from the
date the deed is recorded with the Office of the Waseca County Recorder, and (b) shall
devote the Real Property to its intended use by July 15, 2024. If the Grantee fails to
commence work on time or fails to devote the real property to its intended or fails to
devote the real property to its intended use on time, title to the real property shall revert to
Grantor, at Grantor's election, and, in that event, Grantee shall promptly offer a deed to
the real property legally described herein to Grantor, who will then refund to Grantee the
amount of the Purchase Price paid by Grantee to Grantor, without interest, less any taxes
and other encumbrances affecting marketability of title.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Grantor may, at its option, consider an extension of time for good cause shown by
Grantee.  In the event an extension is granted, such extension (a) shall be to a date
certain, (b) may be conditioned by Grantor to protect the public interest, and (c) during



15 

the period Grantee shall not transfer title to the real property without the express written 
consent of Grantor. 

After the Grantee has devoted the real property to its intended use in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications for the development of the real property submitted to 
the Grantor, the Grantor shall provide to Grantee a certificate of compliance/completion 
in recordable form within 30 days from the determination thereof by Grantor. 

4. Incorporated herein by reference are all of the conditions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections
469.090 to 469.108, and all of said conditions and the conditions stated herein relative to
the use of the real property are covenants running with the land.

5. The Grantee shall not transfer title to the real property within one (1) year after the date
of this Deed without the express written consent of the Grantor.

6. Any transfer of title to the real property made pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3
and 5 hereof shall be made only to a party who demonstrates to the satisfaction of
Grantor that such party has the ability to perform in place of Grantee.

Check here if all or part of the described real property is Registered (Torrens)  ☐
The Grantor certifies that the Grantor does not know of any wells on the described real property. 

Grantor 

Waseca Economic Development Authority 

By: ____________________________ 
INSERT, Its President 

By: ____________________________ 
INSERT, Its Executive Director 



16 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WASECA ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2024, by INSERT, as 
President, and INSERT, as Executive Director, of the Waseca Economic Development 
Authority, Grantor. 

(Notary Seal) 
____________________________ 
Notary Public 

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 

FLAHERTY & HOOD, P.A. 
525 Park Street, Suite 470 
St. Paul, MN 55103 
(651) 225-8840

TAX STATEMENTS FOR THE REAL 
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS 
INSTRUMENT SHOULD BE SENT TO: 

BUSINESS NAME 
ADDRESS 
Waseca, MN 56093 



6D


	1 April AGENDA
	5A Minutes March 13, 2024
	5B EDA-List of Expenditures
	5B1 List of Expenditures
	5C Monthly Budget Report 4.8.24
	5D Project Updates under consent agenda
	6A REDAA Lucias Cocina
	6A1 Purchase Agreement EDA - West Elm v3 - 040324
	6C Zinkle Application



